ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE TRANSPORTATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 19, 2005
1:48 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Charlie Huggins, Chair
Senat or John Cowdery, Vice Chair
Senat or CGene Therri aul t

Senat or Al bert Kookesh

Senator Hollis French

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO. 174
"An Act excluding certain trucks from the definition of
' passenger vehicle' for purposes of the passenger vehicle rental
tax; and providing for an effective date."

MOVED SB 174 OUT OF COW TTEE

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 174

SHORT TI TLE. EXEMPT UHAULS FROM VEHI CLE RENTAL TAX
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) HUGG NS

04/ 14/ 05 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
04/ 14/ 05 (S) TRA, FIN
04/ 19/ 05 (S) TRA AT 1:45 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

Deborah Grundnmann, Legislative Aide
Staff to Chair Huggins

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: | ntroduced SB 174.

John Norris, President

U- Haul of Al aska
4631 Shel burne Pl ace

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -1- April 19, 2005



Anchor age, Al aska 99516- 2930
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 174.

Joanna Bal es, Program Manager

Vehi cl e Rental Tax

Departnent of Revenue

PO Box 110400

Juneau, AK 99811-0400

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Neutral on SB 174.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR CHARLIE HUGEA NS called the Senate Transportation Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:48:39 PM Present were Senators
John Cowdery, Gene Therriault, Hollis French, Al bert Kookesh,
and Chair Charlie Huggins.

SB 174- EXEMPT UHAULS FROM VEH CLE RENTAL TAX

CHAI R HUGE NS announced SB 174 to be up for consideration
DEBORAH GRUNDVANN, staff to Senator Huggins, said:

Before you today is SB 174, an act excluding certain
trucks from the definition of 'passenger vehicle' for
purposes of the Passenger Vehicle Rental Tax and
providing for an affective date. Senate Bill 174 was
introduced to correct an unintended consequence of
| egi sl ati on passed in 2003.

In 2003 the Al aska Legislature passed HB 271 as a
tourism based tax on passenger rental cars and
recreational vehicles. The purpose of the tax was to
tax wvisitors using our road system not | ocal
citizens. However, HB 271 has negatively inpacted the
followi ng: Alaska citizens needing to nove, our | ocal
i ndependent outlets and the consunmer truck rental
busi ness overall. Senate Bill 174 will ensure that the
tax applies nore specifically to the intended target
of visitors renting passenger vehicles and recreation
vehi cl es.

Currently the Departnment of Revenue anticipates that

$7.4 mllion will be collected from this tax, if U
Hauls are excluded, there wll be a deficit of
$275, 000 doll ars. So this exclusion wll have a

m nimal i npact on the taxes that are being coll ected.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 2- April 19, 2005



1: 50: 50 PM
JOHN NORRI' S, President of U Haul Al aska, said:

The passage of HB 271 has affected Al askan citizens
that have needed to nove, our |ocal independent
outlets and our business overall. Today, 17 percent
fewer people are using our services and in the nonth
of March alone there was a 29 percent drop in
custoners using our services.

Moving is a stressful tinme for people and the
additional tax is often applied to custoners who can
| east afford it, adding even nore stress to their
novi ng experience. After HB 271 becane |aw, HB 347 was
introduced during the 2004 Ilegislative session to
correct the unintended inclusion of taxicabs. HB 347
provi ded an exenption for taxicabs and was passed and
signed into law. SB 174 would provide the sane relief
for trucks that HB 347 provided to taxicabs.

1: 52: 40 PM

Ni nety-Five percent of our custoners who use our
services are Alaska residents. The Alaska Trucking
Associ ation favors this legislation along with the
truck renting and |easing association. As far as | am
aware there are no investor groups that oppose this
| egi sl ati on.

Since starting the business in 1992, we have seen an
increase in utilization at the rate of about 7 to 14
percent each year. The 17 percent decrease in the
utilization of our services was the first decline that
we have ever seen. Wile | <cannot attribute this
solely to any one item the comrunication from our
custoners is that the 10 percent tax has been a
significant hardship for them

This tax 1is having a significant inpact on how
Al askans nmove yet it is only a small anount conpared
to the estimated $7 nillion that wll be collected

from the intended target of SB 271. Additionally,
truck rental is done by business that nust neet their
peak procedural demands and higher transportation
costs will alnmost certainly result in higher consuner

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 3- April 19, 2005



product costs. In either case, Al askan residents are
bearing the burden of the additional 10 percent tax. |
support SB 174.

SENATOR CONDERY asked the | owest daily rental that he offers.

SENATOR KOOKESH arrived at 1:55:41 PM

MR. NORRI S responded:

The smmllest vehicle that we rent is about $19.95 and
the average mleage rental that we have is about $55.

SENATOR CONDERY asked if that sum i ncl udes tax.
MR. NORRI S responded no.

SENATOR COWDERY asked M. Norris whether he would change his
rental rates if the bill were to pass.

MR. NORRIS said his rates would remain at their current |evel.
SENATOR FRENCH asked whether trailers are subject to the tax.
MR. NORRI S responded trailers are not subject to the tax.

SENATOR FRENCH asked the witness if his snmallest truck is over
8, 500 pounds.

MR. NORRI S responded yes.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if that is the case with his conpetitor's
vehi cl es.

MR NORRIS replied all of his conpetitors are in the sanme weight
category as his.

1: 57: 38 PM

CHAIR HUGA NS asked the wtness the nunber of outlets his
conpany has in Al aska.

MR NORRIS replied his conpany has 49 independent rental agencies
and three conpany-owned rental agencies.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -4- April 19, 2005



CHAIR HUGA NS asked M. Norris whether he talked with any of his
conpetitors about the bill and if so, whether any of them
objected to the bill.

MR. NORRI S responded he had not spoken to any of his conpetitors
about the bill

CHAIR HUGA NS asked M. Norris if he believes that any of his
conpetitors have any reason to oppose this bill

MR. NORRIS said he does not believe any of his conpetitors have
reason to oppose SB 174.

CHAI R HUGE NS asked whether he was surprised at the effect that
HB 271 had on his business.

MR NORRIS replied the affect that HB 271 has had on his
busi ness canme as a total surprise.

CHAIR HUGE NS asked how he was told that he was supposed to
col l ect the tax.

MR. NORRI S answered that the Departnent of Revenue contacted his
accounting firm

1:59: 31 PM
SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if standard pickup trucks are taxed.

MR. NORRI'S said that standard pickup trucks would still be taxed
if this bill were to pass since they weight less than 8,500
pounds, which is the exception [imt.

2:01: 02 PM

M5. JOHANNA BALES, program nmanager, Vehicle Rental Tax,
Departnent of Revenue, responded |anguage of the bill is such
that two standards nust be nmet before a rental truck is exenpt
fromtaxation. One is the weight requirenent of 8,500 pounds and
the other is the vehicle nmust be designed, used or naintained
primarily for the transportation of personal property.

2:02:40 PM
CHAIR HUGGE NS asked; 'Wien HB 271 was put into affect in 2003,

did you realize that noving vehicles would be included, or was
that a surprise to you as wel | ?

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 5- April 19, 2005



MS. BALES responded:

It didn't cone as nmuch of as surprise. | think that we
were nore surprised by the taxicab rentals. | do need
to point out that the nunicipality of Anchorage has
its own vehicle rental tax that is separate from the
state and they specifically exclude the U Haul type
rental vehicles fromtheir rental tax as well.

SENATOR THERRI AULT noved SB 174 from conmittee with attached
fiscal notes and attached recommendations. There being
obj ections, the notion carri ed.

no

There being no further business to cone before the commttee,

Chair

Huggi ns adj ourned the neeting at 2:04:26 PM

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 6- April 19, 2005



